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motion in accordance with § 210.15(c) of 
this part, provided that the response is 
accompanied by a certificate con-
firming that the response was served 
on the proposed intervenor and all 
other parties. The Commission, or the 
administrative law judge by initial de-
termination, may grant the motion to 
the extent and upon such terms as may 
be proper under the circumstances. 

§ 210.20 Declassification of confiden-
tial information. 

(a) Any party may move to declassify 
documents (or portions thereof) that 
have been designated confidential by 
the submitter but that do not satisfy 
the confidentiality criteria set forth in 
§ 201.6(a) of this chapter. All such mo-
tions, whether brought at any time 
during the investigation or after con-
clusion of the investigation shall be ad-
dressed to and ruled upon by the pre-
siding administrative law judge, or if 
the investigation is not before a pre-
siding administrative law judge, by the 
chief administrative law judge or such 
administrative law judge as he may 
designate. 

(b) Following issuance of a public 
version of the initial determination on 
whether there is a violation of section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 or an initial 
determination that would otherwise 
terminate the investigation (if adopted 
by the Commission), the granting of a 
motion, in whole or part, to declassify 
information designated confidential 
shall constitute an initial determina-
tion, except as to that information for 
which no submissions in opposition to 
declassification have been filed. 

§ 210.21 Termination of investigations. 
(a) Motions for termination. (1) Any 

party may move at any time prior to 
the issuance of an initial determina-
tion on violation of section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930 to terminate an in-
vestigation in whole or in part as to 
any or all respondents, on the basis of 
withdrawal of the complaint or certain 
allegations contained therein, or for 
good cause other than the grounds list-
ed in paragraph (a)(2) of this section. A 
motion for termination of an investiga-
tion based on withdrawal of the com-
plaint shall contain a statement that 
there are no agreements, written or 

oral, express or implied between the 
parties concerning the subject matter 
of the investigation, or if there are any 
agreements concerning the subject 
matter of the investigation, all such 
agreements shall be identified, and if 
written, a copy shall be filed with the 
Commission along with the motion. If 
the agreement contains confidential 
business information within the mean-
ing of § 201.6(a) of this chapter, at least 
one copy of the agreement with such 
information deleted shall accompany 
the motion, in addition to a copy of the 
confidential version. The presiding ad-
ministrative law judge may grant the 
motion in an initial determination 
upon such terms and conditions as he 
deems proper. 

(2) Any party may move at any time 
to terminate an investigation in whole 
or in part as to any or all respondents 
on the basis of a settlement, a licens-
ing or other agreement, including an 
agreement to present the matter for 
arbitration, or a consent order, as pro-
vided in paragraphs (b), (c) and (d) of 
this section. 

(b) Termination by settlement. (1) An 
investigation before the Commission 
may be terminated as to one or more 
respondents pursuant to section 337(c) 
of the Tariff Act of 1930 on the basis of 
a licensing or other settlement agree-
ment. A motion for termination by set-
tlement shall contain copies of the li-
censing or other settlement agreement, 
any supplemental agreements, and a 
statement that there are no other 
agreements, written or oral, express or 
implied between the parties concerning 
the subject matter of the investigation. 
If the licensing or other settlement 
agreement contains confidential busi-
ness information within the meaning of 
§ 201.6(a) of this chapter, a copy of the 
agreement with such information de-
leted shall accompany the motion. 

(2) The motion and agreement(s) 
shall be certified by the administrative 
law judge to the Commission with an 
initial determination if the motion for 
termination is granted. If the licensing 
or other agreement or the initial deter-
mination contains confidential busi-
ness information, copies of the agree-
ment and initial determination with 
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confidential business information de-
leted shall be certified to the Commis-
sion simultaneously with the confiden-
tial versions of such documents. Notice 
of the initial determination and the 
agreement shall be provided to the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human 
Services, the U.S. Department of Jus-
tice, the Federal Trade Commission, 
the U.S. Customs Service, and such 
other departments and agencies as the 
Commission deems appropriate. If the 
Commission’s final disposition of the 
initial determination results in termi-
nation of the investigation in its en-
tirety, a notice will be published in the 
FEDERAL REGISTER. Termination by 
settlement need not constitute a deter-
mination as to violation of section 337 
of the Tariff Act of 1930. 

(c) Termination by entry of consent 
order. An investigation before the Com-
mission may be terminated pursuant to 
section 337(c) of the Tariff Act of 1930 
on the basis of a consent order. Termi-
nation by consent order need not con-
stitute a determination as to violation 
of section 337. 

(1) Opportunity to submit proposed con-
sent order—(i) Prior to institution of an 
investigation. Where time, the nature of 
the proceeding, and the public interest 
permit, any person being investigated 
pursuant to section 603 of the Trade 
Act of 1974 (19 U.S.C. § 2482) shall be af-
forded the opportunity to submit to 
the Commission a proposal for disposi-
tion of the matter under investigation 
in the form of a consent order stipula-
tion that incorporates a proposed con-
sent order executed by or on behalf of 
such person and that complies with the 
requirements of paragraph (c)(3) of this 
section. 

(ii) Subsequent to institution of an in-
vestigation. In investigations under sec-
tion 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, a pro-
posal to terminate by consent order 
shall be submitted as a motion to the 
administrative law judge with a stipu-
lation that incorporates a proposed 
consent order. If the stipulation con-
tains confidential business information 
within the meaning of § 201.6(a) of this 
chapter, a copy of the stipulation with 
such information deleted shall accom-
pany the motion. The stipulation shall 
comply with the requirements of para-
graph (c)(3)(i) of this section. At any 

time prior to commencement of the 
hearing, the motion may be filed by 
one or more respondents, and may be 
filed jointly with other parties to the 
investigation. Upon request and for 
good cause shown, the administrative 
law judge may consider such a motion 
during or after a hearing. The filing of 
the motion shall not stay proceedings 
before the administrative law judge un-
less the administrative law judge so or-
ders. The administrative law judge 
shall promptly file with the Commis-
sion an initial determination regarding 
the motion for termination if the mo-
tion is granted. If the initial deter-
mination contains confidential busi-
ness information, a copy of the initial 
determination with such information 
deleted shall be filed with the Commis-
sion simultaneously with the filing of 
the confidential version of the initial 
determination. Pending disposition by 
the Commission of a consent order 
stipulation, a party may not, absent 
good cause shown, withdraw from the 
stipulation once it has been submitted 
pursuant to this section. 

(2) Commission disposition of consent 
order. (i) If an initial determination 
granting the motion for termination 
based on a consent order stipulation is 
filed with the Commission, notice of 
the initial determination and the con-
sent order stipulation shall be provided 
to the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services, the U.S. Department 
of Justice, the Federal Trade Commis-
sion, the U.S. Customs Service, and 
such other departments and agencies 
as the Commission deems appropriate. 

(ii) The Commission, after consid-
ering the effect of the settlement by 
consent order upon the public health 
and welfare, competitive conditions in 
the U.S. economy, the production of 
like or directly competitive articles in 
the United States, and U.S. consumers, 
shall dispose of the initial determina-
tion according to the procedures of 
§§ 210.42 through 210.45. If the Commis-
sion’s final disposition of the initial de-
termination results in termination of 
the investigation in its entirety, a no-
tice will be published in the FEDERAL 
REGISTER. Termination by consent 
order need not constitute a determina-
tion as to violation of section 337. 
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Should the Commission reverse the ini-
tial determination, the parties are in 
no way bound by their proposal in later 
actions before the Commission. 

(3) Contents of consent order stipula-
tion—(i) Contents. (A) Every consent 
order stipulation shall contain, in addi-
tion to the proposed consent order, the 
following: 

(1) An admission of all jurisdictional 
facts; 

(2) An express waiver of all rights to 
seek judicial review or otherwise chal-
lenge or contest the validity of the 
consent order; 

(3) A statement that the signatories 
to the consent order stipulation will 
cooperate with and will not seek to im-
pede by litigation or other means the 
Commission’s efforts to gather infor-
mation under subpart I of this part; 
and 

(4) A statement that the enforce-
ment, modification, and revocation of 
the consent order will be carried out 
pursuant to subpart I of this part, in-
corporating by reference the Commis-
sion’s Rules of Practice and Procedure. 

(B) In the case of an intellectual 
property-based investigation, the con-
sent order stipulation shall also con-
tain— 

(1) A statement that the consent 
order shall not apply with respect to 
any claim of any intellectual property 
right that has expired or been found or 
adjudicated invalid or unenforceable by 
the Commission or a court or agency of 
competent jurisdiction, provided that 
such finding or judgment has become 
final and nonreviewable; and 

(2) A statement that each signatory 
to the stipulation who was a respond-
ent in the investigation will not seek 
to challenge the validity of the intel-
lectual property right(s), in any admin-
istrative or judicial proceeding to en-
force the consent order. 

(C) The consent order stipulation 
may contain a statement that the sign-
ing thereof is for settlement purposes 
only and does not constitute admission 
by any respondent that an unfair act 
has been committed. 

(ii) Effect, interpretation, and report-
ing. The consent order shall have the 
same force and effect and may be en-
forced, modified, or revoked in the 
same manner as is provided in section 

337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 and this 
part for other Commission actions. The 
Commission may require periodic com-
pliance reports pursuant to subpart I of 
this part to be submitted by the person 
entering into the consent order stipula-
tion. 

(d) Termination based upon arbitration 
agreement. Upon filing of a motion for 
termination with the administrative 
law judge or the Commission, a section 
337 investigation may be terminated as 
to one or more respondents pursuant to 
section 337(c) of the Tariff Act of 1930 
on the basis of an agreement between 
complainant and one or more of the re-
spondents to present the matter for ar-
bitration. The motion and a copy of the 
arbitration agreement shall be cer-
tified by the administrative law judge 
to the Commission with an initial de-
termination if the motion for termi-
nation is granted. If the agreement or 
the initial determination contains con-
fidential business information, copies 
of the agreement and initial deter-
mination with confidential business in-
formation deleted shall be certified to 
the Commission with the confidential 
versions of such documents. A notice 
will be published in the FEDERAL REG-
ISTER if the Commission’s final disposi-
tion of the initial determination re-
sults in termination of the investiga-
tion in its entirety. Termination based 
on an arbitration agreement does not 
constitute a determination as to viola-
tion of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 
1930. 

(e) Effect of termination. Termination 
issued by the administrative law judge 
shall constitute an initial determina-
tion. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67627, Dec. 30, 1994; 60 FR 53120, Oct. 12, 
1995; 73 FR 38322, July 7, 2008] 

§ 210.22 [Reserved] 

§ 210.23 Suspension of investigation. 
Any party may move to suspend an 

investigation under this part, because 
of the pendency of proceedings before 
the Secretary of Commerce or the ad-
ministering authority pursuant to sec-
tion 337(b)(3) of the Tariff Act of 1930. 
The administrative law judge or the 
Commission also may raise the issue 
sua sponte. An administrative law 
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